










List Entry Record 
 

 

  

  List Number: 4592  

 

 Site Reference: P3217  

 

 

   

                   
  Name: Arthur Eady Building (Former) 

 

 

    

Other Names: 

 

 

  Name Year From Year To 

Arthur Eady Building     

Arthur Eady Ltd Building     

Arthur Eady Limited Building     

Begg’s      

Monteil Buildings     

The Musical and Electrical 
Centre 

    

Prudential Building     

Prudential Building 
(Provident Life) 

    

 

 

   

  

 Location: 112‐116 Queen Street and 4 Vulcan Lane, AUCKLAND 

 

 

  

 List Entry Legal Description: Pt Lot 3 DP 10760 (CT NA273/222), North Auckland Land District 

 

 Local 
Authority: 

Auckland Council (Auckland City Council) 

Summary: Regarded as ultra-modern when it opened in the commercial heart of Auckland in 
1939, the five-storey Arthur Eady Building was designed by the well-known local 
architectural practice of Chilwell and Tevithick following amalgamation of New 
Zealand’s two largest music businesses. Occupying a landmark site at the corner of 
Vulcan Lane and Queen Street, the concrete and steel-framed premises were 
purpose-built for Dunedin-based Charles Begg and Company. The building is 
notable for its three-dimensional character and simple symmetrical lines 
emphasised by horizontal bands of metal-framed windows maximising natural light 
and ventilation. Fabricated with potential for four additional storeys, the Inter-War 
Functionalist design strongly influenced the later New Zealand Shipping Company 
Building in Quay Street designed in 1945 by the same architects. Along with the 
technically advanced Dingwall Building (1934) and Post-War International-style AMP 
Building (1958-62), the Arthur Eady Building illustrates aspects of modernism 
including the greater use of glass as a construction material, and intensification of 
commercial development in Auckland’s main street over two-and-a-half decades 
from the mid-1930s. The Inter-War Functionalist style with connotations of 
modernity, utility and disassociation with styles of the past was well suited to Begg’s 
as retailers of labour-saving electrical household appliances. 
 
Prior to European arrival, successive iwi and hapu groups occupied Horotiu, which 
included the present-day Queen Street gully. Shortly after the establishment of 
Auckland as colonial capital in 1840, the Crown granted Allotment 3 to William 
Mason, auctioneer, who subdivided the holding shortly after. Early Auckland 
buildings on the site included the offices of the Daily Southern Cross newspaper. 
Timber merchant Daniel Lynch bought the property in 1853 on which a two-storey 



brick building was erected. In 1884, music seller Arthur Eady became the lessor, 
buying the building in 1914. Following his death in 1929, Eady’s estate redeveloped 
the site after the business was bought by Dunedin-based Charles Begg and 
Company Limited.  
 
Begg’s negotiated a ten-year lease for new purpose-built premises to be erected. 
The Musical and Electrical Centre was designed by architects Chilwell and Tevithick 
and constructed by W.H. Whittaker Limited. The Arthur Eady Building described at 
the time of construction as essentially modern, involved what was claimed to be the 
largest external use of structural glass in New Zealand prior to that time. Spandrel 
panels were of a material generally marketed as Vitrolite. The three-dimensional 
character of the corner-site design was enhanced by a rear lane adjoining a third 
boundary. The structure projecting Begg’s image as a progressive and dynamic 
commercial organisation, incorporated a ground floor mezzanine and upper floors 
notable for their utility and modernity, which were accessed via a lift and a curving 
staircase. Office partitions were of plate glass for even distribution of light. The 
Queen Street retail outlet specialised in the traditional mainstays - sheet music and 
musical instruments; music recordings, gramophones and radios; and an expanding 
range of labour-saving electrical appliances which Begg’s assembled or held 
agencies for in a climate of government import restrictions and import substitution 
policies. While electrical appliances had become more common in the homes of the 
well-to-do in the 1930s, it was not until the 1940s and 1950s that they became more 
widespread.  
 
Begg’s failed in their 1955 bid to buy their distinctive, purpose-built premises and 
relocated in 1960. In 1956, new owners Monteil Buildings Limited enclosed the 
stairs and filled-in the mezzanine. Known as the Prudential Building for many 
decades from 1960, the property survived a proposed public open space 
designation and was unit-titled in 2001.  

 

  

            

  List Entry Status: 

 

 Listed 

 

 

  

  List Entry Type: 

 

 Historic Place Category 2 

 

 

   

  List Number: 

 

4592 

 

   

  Date Entered: 

 

 10 September 1987 

 

 

 
 

 
  

Extent includes the land described as Pt Lot 3 DP 10760 
(CT NA273/222), North Auckland Land District, and the 
Arthur Eady Building (Former) thereon. 

 

 

  Extent of List Entry: 

 

  

  

 

  

  Chattels 

 

   
 

 

  
  

 

    

District Plan Listing: 

 

 

  District Plan NOT listed in Auckland District Plan (Central Area) 
Operative (in part) 19 January 2005 

 

   
  Maori Interest: 

 

 Unknown 

 

   
  Heritage NZ Office: 

 

 Mid-Northern Office 

 

   
 

Please note that entry on the New Zealand Heritage List/Rarangi 
Korero identifies only the heritage values of the property concerned, 
and should not be construed as advice on the state of the property, or 
as a comment of its soundness or safety, including in regard to 
earthquake risk, safety in the event of fire, or insanitary conditions.A 

  Other Information: 

 



fully referenced upgrade report is available on request from the 
Northern Region Office of Heritage New Zealand 
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Section 23(1) Registered under previous legislation (HPA 1980) 

Section 23(2) Registered under previous legislation (HPA 1980). 
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Summary Report 
Arthur Eady Building (Former), AUCKLAND (List No. 

4592)  
 File: BDG 399 

 
Arthur Eady Building (Former), Joan McKenzie, copyright Heritage New Zealand, 30 May 2015 
 

Address 112-116 Queen Street, 4 Vulcan Lane, AUCKLAND 
 
NZTM Easting: 1757468.2 
NZTM Northing: 5920647.3 

Legal Description DP 10760 (CT NA273/222), North Auckland Land District 

Extent Extent includes the land described as DP 10760 (CT NA273/222, 
North Auckland Land District, and the building known as Arthur Eady 
Limited Building (Former) thereon. 
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Constructed by: Arthur Eady Estate (Owners) 
Chilwell and Trevithick (Architects) 
W.H. Whittaker and Company (Contractors) 

Owners Securities House Trustee Limited. 
 
Summary:  
 
Regarded as ultra-modern when it opened in the commercial heart of Auckland in 1939, the 
five-storey Arthur Eady Building was designed by the well-known local architectural practice 
of Chilwell and Tevithick following amalgamation of New Zealand’s two largest music 
businesses.1 Occupying a landmark site at the corner of Vulcan Lane and Queen Street, the 
concrete and steel-framed premises were purpose-built for Dunedin-based Charles Begg and 
Company. The building is notable for its three-dimensional character and simple symmetrical 
lines emphasised by horizontal bands of metal-framed windows maximising natural light and 
ventilation. Fabricated with potential for four additional storeys, the Inter-War Functionalist 
design strongly influenced the later New Zealand Shipping Company Building in Quay Street 
designed in 1945 by the same architects.2 Along with the technically advanced Dingwall 
Building (1934) and Post-War International-style AMP Building (1958-62), the Arthur Eady 
Building illustrates aspects of modernism including the greater use of glass as a construction 
material, and intensification of commercial development in Auckland’s main street over two-
and-a-half decades from the mid-1930s. The Inter-War Functionalist style with connotations 
of modernity, utility and disassociation with styles of the past was well suited to Begg’s as 
retailers of labour-saving electrical household appliances. 
 
Prior to European arrival, successive iwi and hapu groups occupied Horotiu, which included 
the present-day Queen Street gully.3 Shortly after the establishment of Auckland as colonial 
capital in 1840, the Crown granted Allotment 3 to William Mason, auctioneer, who 
subdivided the holding shortly after.4 Early Auckland buildings on the site included the offices 
of the Daily Southern Cross newspaper.5 Timber merchant Daniel Lynch bought the property 
in 1853 on which a two-storey brick building was erected. In 1884, music seller Arthur Eady 
became the lessor, buying the building in 1914.6 Following his death in 1929, Eady’s estate 
redeveloped the site after the business was bought by Dunedin-based Charles Begg and 
Company Limited.7 
 
Begg’s negotiated a ten-year lease for new purpose-built premises to be erected.8 The 
Musical and Electrical Centre was designed by architects Chilwell and Tevithick and 
constructed by W.H. Whittaker Limited.9 The Arthur Eady Building described at the time of 
                                                 
1 New Zealand Herald (NZH): 19 Nov 1938, pp.8, 15. 
2 NZH: 12 Jul 1938, p.11; 15 Jul 1938, p.15; 8 Mar 1945, p.4. 
3 Reed, A.W., Auckland City of the Seas, Wellington, 1955, p.150. 
4 New Zealand Archaeological Association (NZAA) Site Record R11/1675. 
5 Ibid. 
6 Ibid.; T.W. Hickson, Map of Auckland, New Zealand, 1882, NZ Map 60d, Sir George Grey Special 
Collections, Auckland Libraries; Auckland Star (AS), 17 Jan 1914, p.9; NZH: 19 Jan 1914, p.8; 12 Jul 1938, 
p.11. 
7 NZH: 14 Jan 1929, p.12; 12 Jul 1938, p.11; 19 Nov 1938, p.17; 17 Dec 1938, p.14; 11 Jan 1939, p.10; 
Gleeson, Clare, Meet Me at Begg’s: The Store of Charles Begg & Co, Music and Applicance 
Manufacturers and Retailers, 1861-1970, Wellington, 2012, p.212. 
8 NZH: 12 Jul 1938, p.11; CT NA213/222, North Auckland Land District, LINZ. 
9 NZH, 17 Dec 1938, p.10; 19 Nov 1938, pp.8, 15. 
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construction as essentially modern, involved what was claimed to be the largest external use 
of structural glass in New Zealand prior to that time.10 Spandrel panels were of a material 
generally marketed as Vitrolite.11 The three-dimensional character of the corner-site design 
was enhanced by a rear lane adjoining a third boundary.12 The structure projecting Begg’s 
image as a progressive and dynamic commercial organisation, incorporated a ground floor 
mezzanine and upper floors notable for their utility and modernity, which were accessed via a 
lift and a curving staircase. Office partitions were of plate glass for even distribution of light.13 
The Queen Street retail outlet specialised in the traditional mainstays - sheet music and 
musical instruments; music recordings, gramophones and radios; and an expanding range of 
labour-saving electrical appliances which Begg’s assembled or held agencies for in a climate of 
government import restrictions and import substitution policies.14 While electrical appliances 
had become more common in the homes of the well-to-do in the 1930s, it was not until the 
1940s and 1950s that they became more widespread.15 
 
Begg’s failed in their 1955 bid to buy their distinctive, purpose-built premises and relocated in 
1960.16 In 1956, new owners Monteil Buildings Limited enclosed the stairs and filled-in the 
mezzanine.17 Known as the Prudential Building for many decades from 1960, the property 
survived a proposed public open space designation and was unit-titled in 2001.18 
 
Further Reading 
 
Auckland Star, 17 Jan 1914, p.9 
New Zealand Herald: 12 Jul 1938, p.11; 15 Jul 1938, p.15; 13 Oct 1939, p.9; 19 Oct 1939, p.15. 
Gleeson, Clare, Meet Me at Begg’s: The Store of Charles Begg & Co, Music and Applicant 
Manufacturers and Retailers, 1861-1970, Wellington, 2012 
Photograph: Arthur Eady Building with scaffolding, 1939 (Sir George Grey Special Collections, 
Auckland Libraries, 34-T7B, Clifton Firth). 
 

Other Names Arthur Eady Limited Building (1939- ) 
Begg’s (1939-60) 
The Musical and Electrical Centre (1939-60) 

                                                 
10 NZH, 19 Nov 1938, p.17; Home & Building, November 1939, p.25. 
11 NZH, 19 Nov 1938, p.17; Auckland City Council, City Heritage Walks: Downtown, Midtown, Uptown, 
Auckland, [2005?], (Midtown, entry 33); Apperly, Richard, Robert Irving, Peter Reynolds, A Pictorial 
Guide Identifying Australian Architecture: Style and Terms from 1788 to the Present, Sydney, 1989 
(1994 ed.), p.186 
12 CT NA213/222, North Auckland Land District, LINZ. 
13 Home & Building, November 1939, n.p.; BPM B/1939/999 - BUILDING CONSENT plan - O/1704/10, 
Property File 112-116 Queen Street, Auckland Council; Apperly, Irving and Reynolds, p.187. 
14 NZH, 19 Oct 1939, p.15; Home & Building, Nov 1939, p.22; Gleeson, pp.124-9. 
15 Cook, Megan, ‘Household management - Inside work’, Te Ara - the Encyclopedia of New Zealand, 
updated 9-Jul-13, URL: http://www.TeAra.govt.nz/en/household-management/page-2 ; Kerryn Pollock, 
‘Domestic recreation and hobbies’, Te Ara – the Encyclopedia of New Zealand, updated 24-Jul-13, URL: 
domestic-recreation-and-hobbies  
16 Gleeson, p.153; CT NA273/222, North Auckland Land District 
17 CT NA273/222, North Auckland Land District; BPM B/1956/2437 - BUILDING CONSENT plan - 
O/7979/10, Property File 112-116 Queen Street, Auckland Council. 
18 Auckland City Council, City Heritage Walks: Downtown, Midtown, Uptown, Auckland, [2005?], 
(Midtown, entry 33); Manager Central Area Planning, Auckland City Council to New Zealand Historic 
Places Trust, 26 Aug 1999, Heritage New Zealand, Auckland, file BDG, 399. 

http://www.teara.govt.nz/en/household-management/page-2%20;%20Kerryn%20Pollock,%20'Domestic%20recreation%20and%20hobbies',%20Te%20Ara%20–%20the%20Encyclopedia%20of%20New%20Zealand,%20updated%2024-Jul-13,%20URL:%20domestic-recreation-and-hobbies
http://www.teara.govt.nz/en/household-management/page-2%20;%20Kerryn%20Pollock,%20'Domestic%20recreation%20and%20hobbies',%20Te%20Ara%20–%20the%20Encyclopedia%20of%20New%20Zealand,%20updated%2024-Jul-13,%20URL:%20domestic-recreation-and-hobbies
http://www.teara.govt.nz/en/household-management/page-2%20;%20Kerryn%20Pollock,%20'Domestic%20recreation%20and%20hobbies',%20Te%20Ara%20–%20the%20Encyclopedia%20of%20New%20Zealand,%20updated%2024-Jul-13,%20URL:%20domestic-recreation-and-hobbies
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Monteil Buildings (1955-1960) 
Prudential Building (1960-?) 
 
(NZAA R11/1675 - Subsurface remains from nineteen-century 
occupation) 

Key Physical Dates 1840s: Construction - Timber buildings 
1858: Demolition – Fire? 
Pre 1882: Construction - Brick building 
1938-9: Demolition 
1939: Construction: Five-storey concrete structure with steel frame. 
1956: Modifications: Stairs and floor well [mezzanine] enclosed.19 
1960: Modification: Stair constructed to basement.20  
1961: Modification: Strong-room constructed (third floor).21 
1973/77: Modification: Fire protection and egress upgrading.22 
1998: Modification: Lobby upgraded, including new doors.23 
2001: Subdivision: Unit titles created.24 
Various: Modifications - partition walls; ground floor shop fronts. 
Unknown: Modification: Vitrolite spandrels covered or removed.25 
 

Uses  Trade - Shop 
Trade – Offices building/Offices 
 

Associated List 
Entries 

Vulcan Lane Historic Area, List No. 7011 
 

Protection 
Measures 

NOT Listed, Auckland Council District Plan - Central Area Section - 
Operative 2004 (updated 11 Feb 2013) 
 
NOT Listed, Auckland Council Proposed Unitary Plan (notified 30 Sep 
2013).   

Recommendation Technical change required: 
 
Board Paper reference: BCC paper HP 279/1987. 

                                                 
19 BPM B/1956/2437 - BUILDING CONSENT plan - O/7979/10, Property File 112-116 Queen Street, 
Auckland Council.  
20 BPM B/1960/5545 - BUILDING CONSENT plan – O/7177/05, Property File 112-116 Queen Street, 
Auckland Council. 
21 BPM/1961/5996 - BUILDING CONSENT plan – O/81780, Property File 112-116 Queen Street, 
Auckland Council. 
22 BPM/1973 - BUILDING CONSENT plan – O/11815/05; BPM/1977 - BUILDING CONSENT plan – 
O/23322/01, Property File 112-116 Queen Street, Auckland Council. 
23 BPM B/1998/3803592 - BUILDING CONSENT plan - Building Consent (Hobson), Property File 112-116 
Queen Street, Auckland Council. 
24 R/Sub/2001/4002815 - DIVISION CONSENTS certificate - Unit title, Property File 112-116 Queen 
Street, Auckland Council. 
25 Auckland City Council, City Heritage Walks: Downtown, Midtown, Uptown, Auckland, [2005?], 
(Midtown, entry 33). 
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Change Name: Arthur Eady Buiding (Former) 
Change Address: 112-116 Queen Street and 4 Vulcan Lane, 
AUCKLAND 
Add Legal Description: Pt Lot 3 DP 10760 (CT NA273/222), North 
Auckland Land District. 
Clarify Extent: Extent includes the land described as Pt Lot 3 DP 
10760 (CT NA273/222), North Auckland Land District, and the Arthur 
Eady Building (Former) thereon. 

 
Attachments  
Technical Change Request 
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BD Minute Board Paper reference: (BCC paper HP 279/1987) 
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Current Identifier: CT NA273/222, North Auckland Land District 
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Evidence of Address: 112-114 Queen Street, 4 Vulcan Lane, AUCKLAND  
 

 
 
Extract from Property Report (QuickMap) 
 

 
 
Map of Extent: Extent includes the land described as DP 10760 (CT NA273/222, North 
Auckland Land District (outlined in red), and the building known as Arthur Eady Building 
(Former) thereon. 
(QuickMap) 
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Images 
 

 
Arthur Eady Building (Former): Under construction, looking northeast, 1939. 
(Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 34-T7B, Clifton Firth). 
 

 
 
Arthur Eady Building (Former): Located at northeast corner of Vulcan Lane Historic Area. 
(Google Earth, 21 May 2012) 
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Historic Place Category 2
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List Entry Status:

List Number:

List Entry Type:

Extent of List Entry:

10 September 1987Date Entered:

Chattels

Other Information:

District Plan NOT listed in Auckland District Plan (Central Area) 
Operative (in part) 19 January 2005

District Plan Listing:

General Nature of Wahi Tapu:

Section 66(1) 
Assessment:

Section 66(3) Detail:

Statement of Wahi Tapu:

Section 23(1) Registered under previous legislation (HPA 1980)

Section 23(2) Registered under previous legislation (HPA 1980).

Other Names: Name Year From Year To

Name: Warwick Building

Location: 166 Queen Street, AUCKLAND

Please note that entry on the New Zealand Heritage List/Rarangi Korero 
identifies only the heritage values of the property concerned, and should not be 
construed as advice on the state of the property, or as a comment of its 
soundness or safety, including in regard to earthquake risk, safety in the event 
of fire, or insanitary conditions.

Local Authority: Auckland Council (Auckland City Council)

Summary:

List Entry Legal Description: All DP 814   CT 50B/936

UnknownMaori Interest:

Heritage NZ Office: Mid-Northern Office
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Summary Report 
Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) (Former), 

AUCKLAND (List No. 2650)  
 File: BDG 228 

Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodged) (Former), Joan McKenzie, copyright Heritage New 
Zealand, 24 May 2015 
 

Address 371 Queen Street, AUCKLAND 
 
NZTM Easting: 1757100.7 
NZTM Northing: 5919732.9 

Legal Description Pt Allot 14 Sec 29 Town of Auckland, Pt DP 5256 (CT NA352/144), 
North Auckland Land District 

Extent Extent includes the land described as Pt Allot 14 Sec 29 Town of 
Auckland, Pt DP 5256 (CT NA352/144), North Auckland Land District, 
and the building known as Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) 
(Former) thereon. 

Constructed by: Henry F. Robinson (Architect). 
Craig Brothers (Builders). 
Auckland Theosophical Society (Owners). 

Owners White House Holdings Limited. 
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Summary:  
 
The monumental Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) built in 1922-3 in Auckland’s Queen 
Street reflects the major importance of Theosophy as a new spiritual movement in late 
nineteenth- and twentieth-century New Zealand society and the organisation’s ability to 
create enduring and prosperous institutions.1 The purpose-built facility has aesthetic and 
architectural significance for the quality of its neo-Classical design by Auckland architect and 
Lodge member H.F. Robinson, including notable interior features some of which survive. The 
place is a significant visual element within the context of upper Queen Street, and the Myers 
Park Historic Area (List No. 7008). As the former rooms of one New Zealand’s early 
Theosophical Societies the place has historical significance as the focus of Theosophical 
activity in the city from 1923 until 1987; for its strong association with significant 
Theosophists including Lilian Edger and Geraldine Hemus; and as the former New Zealand 
Sectional Headquarters (1923-48). 
 
Successive iwi and hapu groups occupied Horotiu including the present-day Queen Street 
gully. Traditions refer to a small pa on or near the current Town Hall.2 Shortly after the 
establishment of Auckland as colonial capital in 1840, the Crown granted Allotment 14 to a 
Thomas Cassidy. In 1883, the property on which a timber building was constructed by 1908 
was bought by Wilhlem Paganini whose daughters sold to the Theosophical Society in 1922.3  
 
The foundation stone was laid in December 1922.4 The brick building described as much in 
advance of anything the Society in New Zealand had attempted, was designed by Auckland 
architect and Society member Henry F. Robinson and built by local contractors Craig 
Brothers.5 Featuring a projecting entry porch, columns, upper-storey balcony of temple-front 
appearance and a notable interior, the visually striking neo-Classical design was of a style 
traditionally associated with monumental public architecture, or the buildings of the banking 
sector, Freemasonry, and Nonconformist churches.6  
 
The Theosophical Society was founded in New York in 1875 as a world organisation for the 
promotion of brotherhood and encouragement of the study of religion, philosophy and 

                                                 
1 Elwood, Robert S., ‘Islands of the Dawn: The Story of Alternative Spirituality in New Zealand, 
Honolulu, 1993, pp.96-7. 
2 Best, Simon, ‘The Myers’ Park Excavations Dam Wall Site (R11/2017): Final Archaeological Report’, 
Auckland, 1998, p.2. 
3 Deeds Index 1A.373, CTs NA1/141, NA133/213, North Auckland Land District, LINZ; W. Hickson, Map 
of Auckland, New Zealand, 1882, NZ Map 60b, Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries; 
1908 City of Auckland Map; Map G12, ACC 014-G12, Auckland Council Archives. 
4 Auckland Star (AS), 3 Nov 1923, p.12. 
5 Ibid., pp.12, 17; ‘New Theosophical Head Quarters’, Theosophy in New Zealand, Vol XXI, No. 1, Jan 
1923, [n.p.]; New Zealand Herald (NZH), 8 Nov 1923, p.10. Henry F. Robinson and the Craig Brothers 
were also responsible for The Higher Thought Temple, a non-denominational church constructed in 
1928 in nearby Union Street: NZHPT Registration Report, ‘Higher Thought Temple’, 13 Jun 2005, (List 
entry No. 4540), p.8. 
6 Matthews and Matthews Architects Limited, ‘371 Queen Street, former theosophical society building 
- cultural heritage assessment (prepared for Brian Le Gros), Auckland, 2000, pp.9-10; James S. Curl, The 
Art and Architecture of Freemasonry: An Introductory Study, London, 2002, p.229; Dixon, Roger, and 
Stefan Muthesius, Victorian Architecture, London, 1985, pp.229, 231. 
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science and man’s place in the universe.7 New Zealand Prime Minster Harry Atkinson was 
among the movement’s many followers.8 The Auckland Society (the second in New Zealand) 
was chartered in March 1892, four years before formation of the New Zealand Section.9 The 
movement attracted middle-class business and professional people and some of the early 
leaders were women.10 Founding member of the Auckland Society and first General Secretary 
(1896-7) of the New Zealand Section, Lilian Edger (1862-1941), had graduated MA from 
Canterbury College in 1882.11 Her niece Geraldine Hemus, an Auckland solicitor and in 1907 
only the third woman to be admitted to the bar in New Zealand, joined in 1898 and was 
among the founders of the Society’s Vasanta Primary School at Epsom (1919-59).12 The H.P.B. 
Lodge, which took its name from the initials of Helena P. Blavatsky one of Theosophy’s 
founders, was chartered in February 1903.13 
 
In 1923, The HPB Lodge and the Section moved to the new Queen Street building, the primary 
venue for meetings, study classes, meditation classes and social gatherings.14 The Section 
occupied the first floor, a mezzanine. On the ground floor were the Society’s lecture hall, the 
library, and a combined book depot and enquiries office. The basement contained the lodge 
room, classrooms and a social room; the lower basement the strong-room and the shrine 
room.15 In 1948 the Section moved to Epsom, followed by the H.P.B. Lodge membership in 
1987.16 Following sale of the Queen Street property in 1994, the building became a nightclub 
and narrowly escaped demolition in 1997.17 In 2000, the building underwent further 
alterations for conversion to a cabaret-type entertainment venue, its current (2015) use.18  
 

                                                 
7 Donovan, Peter (ed.), Beliefs and Practices in New Zealand: A Directory, Palmerston North, 1985, 
p.235. 
8 Morris, Paul, ‘Diverse religions – Recent and new age religious movements’, Te Ara - the Encylopedia 
of New Zealand, updated 13-Jul-12 URL: http://TeAra.govt.nz/en/diverse-religions/page-9  
9 Elwood, pp.101, 103, 106; Neff, Mary, How Theosophy came to Australia and New Zealand, Sydney, 
1943, p.82 (f.n.). The Wellington branch founded in 1888 was the first but lapsed and was re-charted in 
1894. Prior to 1896, New Zealand fell within the Australasian Section; Hemus, G.M., ‘Early Days of 
Theosophy in Auckland’, Theosophy in New Zealand, Vol. 7, No. 2, (April-June 1946), p.52. 
10 Elwood, p.96; Gilling, Bryan, [Review] Robert S. Elwood, Islands of the Dawn, URL 
http://www.nzjh.auckland.ac.nz/document?wid=647&page=0&action=searchresult&target= (accessed 
23 May 2015), p.116. 
11 Elwood, pp.106-9; Hughes, Beryl, ‘Edger, Kate Milligan’, from the Dictionary of New Zealand 
Biography. Te Ara – the Encyclopedia of New Zealand, updated 30-Oct-2012 URL 
http://TeAra.govt.nz/en/biographies/2e3/edger-kate-milligan 
12 Hughes; Coney, Sandra, ‘Ellen Melville (1882-1946)’, McDonald, Charlotte, Merimeri Penfold, Bridget 
Williams (eds), The Book of New Zealand Women: Ko Kui Ma Te Kaupapa, pp.436-7; Elwood, pp.107-8; 
Stone, R.C.J., ‘An Anatomy of the Practice of Law in Nineteenth-Century Auckland’, New Zealand 
Journal of History, 1988, Vol. 22, No. 2, p.95; Patterson, Jack, ‘HPB Lodge/History’, URL 
http://hpb.theosophy.org.nz/content/history (accessed 20 May 2015). 
13 Patterson. 
14 Patterson; Donovan, p.235; AS, 18 Dec 1922, pp.13, 17; NZH, 8 Nov 1923, p.10; 29 Dec 1923, p.5. 
15 ‘New Theosophical Head Quarters’, Theosophy in New Zealand, Vol XXI, No. 1, Jan 1923, [n.p.]; 
B/1922/390 - BUILDING CONSENT plan - O/20634/03 (Sheets 2, 3, 5), Property File 371 Queen Street, 
Auckland Council; Matthews and Matthews, pp.11-12; NZH, 8 Nov 1923, p.10. 
16 ‘Theosophical Encyclopedia, Theosophy in New Zealand’ (published 13 Nov 2012) URL 
http://www.theosophyforward.com/theosophical-encyclopedia/677-theosophy-in-new-zealand 
(accessed 24 May 2015). 
17.CT NA352/144, North Auckland Land District, LINZ; B/1997/306755- BUILDING CONSENT plan – 
Building Consent (Hobson), Property File 371 Queen Street, Auckland Council; NZH, 8 Jan 1998, p.A7. 
18 Mathews and Mathews, p.20; Senior Architect/Planner Heritage Division to Central Area Planner, 
Auckland Council, 8 Aug 2000 (copy held HNZPT Auckland file BDG 228). 

http://teara.govt.nz/en/diverse-religions/page-9
http://www.nzjh.auckland.ac.nz/document?wid=647&page=0&action=searchresult&target
http://teara.govt.nz/en/biographies/2e3/edger-kate-milligan
http://hpb.theosophy.org.nz/content/history
http://www.theosophyforward.com/theosophical-encyclopedia/677-theosophy-in-new-zealand


Joan McKenzie, 24 May 2015 
Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga – Summary Report, List No. 2650 

4 

Further Reading 
 
‘Theosophical Society - New Building Begun’, Auckland Star, 18 Dec 1922, p.13. 
 
‘Theosophical Society - Auckland Headquarters - A Striking Building’, New Zealand Herald, 8 
Nov 1923, p.10. 
 
Patterson, Jack, ‘HPB Lodge/History’, URL http://hpb.theosophy.org.nz/content/history 
(accessed 20 May 2015) 
 
‘Theosophical Encyclopedia, Theosophy in New Zealand’ (published 13 Nov 2012) URL 
http://www.theosophyforward.com/theosophical-encyclopedia/677-theosophy-in-new-
zealand (accessed 24 May 2015). 
 

Other Names Theosophical Society Hall 
The White House 
Monica’s 
 

Key Physical 
Dates19 

Pre-1908: Construction - Timber building 
Unknown: Demolition 
1922-3: Original Construction - Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) 
Unknown: Modification - Sectional Room divided into two (first floor)  
1953: Modification: 
….Part of lodge room flooring replaced (basement); 
….False wall constructed in shrine room (lower basement); 
1983: Modification - toilets in library area; fire separation; 
c.1994: Modifications: 
….Bar in lecture hall, fire egress door and ramp (ground floor); 
….Men’s toilet area, and classroom area changed (basement); 
….Strong room door removed (lower basement); 
c.2000: Addition - Rear, for new stage and backstage facilities; 
c.2000: Modifications: 
….Additional level in roof space; dormer windows introduced; 
….Performance area, bar, restore entry, new toilets and office 
provided; mezzanine installed in main hall office converted to bar 
(ground floor); 
….Basement converted for accommodation suites; 
….Lower basement converted for manager’s suite; 
    Lift installed. 
 

Uses  Trade - Brothel 
Trade - Pub/bar/tavern/public hotel 
Religion - Religion - other (Former) 

                                                 
19 Material for this section is from Matthews and Matthews, pp.11-12; and memo, Senior 
Architect/Planner Heritage Division to Central Area Planner, Auckland Council, 8 Aug 2000. 

http://hpb.theosophy.org.nz/content/history
http://www.theosophyforward.com/theosophical-encyclopedia/677-theosophy-in-new-zealand
http://www.theosophyforward.com/theosophical-encyclopedia/677-theosophy-in-new-zealand
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Religion - Shrine (Former) 
Religion - Religious office (Former) 
Religion - Meeting House (Former) 
Education - Adult Education/training (Former) 
 

Associated List 
Entries 

Myers Park Historic Area, List No. 7008 
 

Protection 
Measures 

NOT Listed, Auckland Council District Plan - Central Area Section - 
Operative 2004 (updated 11 Feb 2013). 
 
NOT Listed, Auckland Council Proposed Unitary Plan (notified 30 Sep 
2013) District Plan Listing/Reserve/Covenant or other status; supply 
details.   

Recommendation Technical change required:  
Board Paper references: HP 286/1981; BD 2010/02/25. 
 
Change Name: Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) (Former). 
Add Legal Description: Pt Allot 14 Sec 29 Town of Auckland, Pt DP 
5256 (CT NA352/144), North Auckland Land District. 
Clarify Extent: Extent includes the land described as Pt Allot 14 Sec 29 
Town of Auckland, Pt DP 5256 (CT NA352/144), North Auckland Land 
District, and the building known as Theosophical Society Hall (HPB 
Lodge) (Former) thereon. 
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Attachments  
Technical Change Request 
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BD Minute Board Paper references: 
 
(BCC paper HP 286/1981) 
 

 
 
 
 
(BD 2010/02/25) 
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Evidence for Proposed Changes 
 
Current Identifier: CT NA352/144, North Auckland Land District 
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Map of Extent: Extent includes the land described as Pt Allot 14 Sec 29 Town of Auckland, Pt 
DP 5256 (CT NA352/144), North Auckland Land District (outlined in magenta) and the building 
known as Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) (Former) thereon. 
(Google Earth, 21 May 2012) 
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Images 
 

 
Auckland Star, 3 Nov 1923, p.17 (National Library’s Papers Past website) 
 

 
Theosophical Society Hall (HPB Lodge) (Former): Showing relationship of place to Myers 
Kindergarten (yellow arrow); terrace of Queen Street Shops (red arrow) and Myers Park 
Historic Area (Google Earth, 21 May 2012)  






